
 

         

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Thousand Oaks Community Development District is a special purpose unit of local government created 
under Florida Law, chapter 190, for the purpose of financing, constructing, operating, and maintaining 

community-wide infrastructure, improvements, and services for the benefit of the properties within its boundaries. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

JULY 8, 2024 
4:15 P.M. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.thousandoakscdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

THOUSAND OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Thousand Oaks HOA Office 

1034 Center Stone Lane 
Riviera Beach, Florida 33404 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

July 8, 2024 
4:15 p.m. 

 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………Page 1  

C. Moment of Silence 

D. Establish Quorum 

E. Additions or Deletions to Agenda/ Board Member Disclosures   

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. June 10, 2024 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing…………………………………………Page 3 

G. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

H. Old Business 

1. Update on Fountain Installation 

2. Update on 1277 Rosegate Blvd. Swell Issue 

3. Update on Preserve/Dry Conservation Project 

4. Update on 2024 Conferences 

 Florida League of Cities August 15th – 17th 2024 

5. Update on Irrigation along Congress 

6. Update on SLB General Contracting Rip Rap Project 

I. New Business 

1. Discussion Regarding Maintenance Agreement Between HOA and CDD……………………….Page 8 

J. Administrative Matters 

1. Financial Report…………………………………………………………………………………...Page 20 

K. Attorney Matters 

L. Board Members Comments 

M. Adjourn 



Page 1



Page 2



Page 1 of 5 
 

THOUSAND OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

JUNE 10, 2024 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The June 10, 2024, Regular Board Meeting of the Thousand Oaks Community Development District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 4:17 p.m. in the Thousand Oaks’ HOA Office located at 1034 Center Stone 
Lane, Riviera Beach, Florida 33404. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in the 
Palm Beach Post on September 29, 2023, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Regular Board 
Meeting, as legally required.  
 
C. MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
 
D. REORGANIZATION OF THE BOARD 

 Chairman 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Knowles, seconded by Mr. Towns and unanimously passed appointing Mr. 
Gaede as Chairman. 
 

 Vice Chairman 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Towns, seconded by Mr. Gaede and unanimously passed appointing Mr. Smith 
as Vice Chairman. 
 

 Secretary/Treasurer 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Towns, seconded by Mr. Smith and unanimously passed appointing Mr. 
Knowles as Secretary/Treasurer. 
 

 Assistant Secretaries 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Knowles and unanimously passed appointing Mr. 
Towns as Assistant Secretary. 
 
E. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
A quorum was established by the presence of Chairman Rance Gaede, Vice Chairman Corey Smith and 
Supervisors Malachi Knowles and Horace Towns. 
  
Staff present included District Manager Sylvia Bethel of Special District Services, Inc.; and Frank Palen of 
Caldwell Pacetti Edwards Schoech & Viator LLP. 
 

Page 3



Page 2 of 5 
 

Also present was Jeffrey Jackson. 
 
F. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
Mr. Towns asked Mr. Palen if he was required to disclose that he is a legislative assistant for a counsel 
member and/or complete another Form 1. Mr. Palen stated was not necessary.  
 
G.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  May 13, 2024, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The minutes of the May 13, 2024, Regular Board Meeting were presented for consideration. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Knowles, seconded by Mr. Towns and passed unanimously approving the 
minutes of the May 13, 2024, Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
H. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
Ms. Bethel then recessed the Regular Board Meeting and opened the Public Hearing. 
 
I. PUBLIC HEARING 
 1.  Proof of Publication 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Public Hearing had been published in the Palm Beach 
Post on May 21, 2024, and May 28, 2024, as legally required.  
 
 2.  Receive Public Comment on Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Final Budget 
 
There was no public comment on the Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Final Budget. 
 
 3.  Consider Resolution No. 2024-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Final Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2024-02 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE THOUSAND OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT ADOPTING A FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 BUDGET.  

 
Mr. Gaede asked Ms. Bethel if this reflected the savings and Ms. Bethel stated that it did.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Knowles, seconded by Mr. Towns and unanimously passed adopting Resolution 
No. 2024-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Final Budget, as presented. 
 
Ms. Bethel then closed the Public Hearing and reconvened the Regular Board Meeting. 
 
J. OLD BUSINESS 
 1.  Update on Newsletter and Website 

Page 4



Page 3 of 5 
 

Ms. Bethel directed the Board’s attention to Page of the meeting books and advised that the tracker showed 
“zero” activity.  Mr. Gaede requested that the item be removed from the agenda.  Mr. Knowles stated it 
should stay and Mr. Gaede explained the reason for it in the beginning and now there was no reason to keep 
it on the agenda.  
 
 2.  Update on Fountain Installation 
 
Ms. Bethel explained that she had sent information to the District Engineer for a sketch to be drawn up so 
that Mr. Palen could create an easement.  An easement should be created to make sure they do not have any 
future issues.  Mr. Palen confirmed.  
  
 3.  Update on 1277 Rosegate Boulevard Swale Issue 
 
Ms. Bethel advised that the vendor would look at this once they get into the community to start the rip rap 
project, which will commence on Tuesday, June 11, 2024, and would be completed within two weeks.  Mr. 
Gaede stated that the HOA had been informed of the rip rap project but to please inform them of the swale 
repair as well.  Ms. Bethel confirmed she would do so.  
 
 4.  Update on Preserve/Dry Conservation Project 
 
Mr. Jackson stated that he was not able to follow up with Mr. Russ due to an appointment but would do so 
tomorrow.  There are several projects that have been paid but have not yet been completed.  Mr. Knowles 
asked if Mr. Jackson was working on these issues on behalf of the Board and Mr. Gaede stated that he had 
requested that Mr. Jackson follow up on these issues on behalf of the Board.  
 
 5.  Update on 2024 Conferences 

 Florida League of Cities - August 15-17, 2024 
 
Ms. Bethel advised that she had registered Mr. Knowles for this conference.  Payment will be sent as soon 
as it has been approved by the Chairman. 
 
Ms. Bethel indicated that she would bring to the next meeting a document that lists reimbursements for the 
Board to consider.  Mr. Gaede stated that if anyone wanted to attend to please let Ms. Bethel know via e-
mail. 
 
 6.  Update Regarding Encroachment Issue 
 
Mr. Gaede stated that he sat with Mr. Wells and his business had been concluded.  The issue was Mr. Wells 
listed HOA and CDD violations.  Mr. Gaede stated he would look through the book and send the CDD 
violations to Mr. Palen to prepare correspondence regarding same.  
  
 7.  Update on Irrigation along Congress 
 
Ms. Bethel stated that Mr. Russ had begun the project and should be completed by Thursday.  He is still 
waiting to hear back from the City on whether a permit is needed.  
 
 8.  Update on SLB General Contracting Rip Rap Project 
 

Page 5



Page 4 of 5 
 

Mr. Gaede stated this item was already discussed.  The vendor will start this Tuesday, June 11 and have 
completed within two weeks.  
 
K. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Consider Resolution No. 2024-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Meeting Schedule  
 
Resolution No. 2024-03 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-03 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE THOUSAND 
OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, ESTABLISHING A 
REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 AND 
SETTING THE TIME AND LOCATION OF SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Ms. Bethel stated that the highlighted dates conflict with her schedule therefore dates were changed from 
the second Monday of the month to the first Monday.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Knowles and unanimously passed adopting Resolution 
No. 2024-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Meeting Schedule, as presented 
 
L. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  Financial Report 
 
Mr. Gaede directed the Board to the financial report.  Ms. Bethel indicated that while the Board was 
reviewing the financials, the Board wanted to know if the pipes were cleaned and she found out that they 
were cleaned in March of 2023. 
 
In addition, Ms. Bethel followed up with South Florida Water Management and they do not give an address 
of where the noninvasive plant is, just the general area.  Mr. Jackson stated that the HOA was marking trees 
that need to be trimmed/removed.  Mr. Gaede stated we would wait and include this noninvasive plant as 
well.  
 
M. ATTORNEY MATTERS 
 
Mr. Palen stated that the Form 1 – Statement of Financial Interests is due July 1st. 
 
Ms. Bethel advised that the qualifying period runs from today at noon through Friday at noon and it costs 
$25.00 to qualify.  She noted that Mr. Jackson and Mr. Smith’s seats were up.  
 
N. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Towns indicated it has been a pleasure working with Mr. Jackson. 
 
O. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the Regular Board Meeting was adjourned at 
4:46 p.m. on a motion made by Mr. Knowles, seconded by Mr. Gaede and passed unanimously. 

Page 6



Page 5 of 5 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice Chair 

Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Thousand Oaks
Community Development District

  Financial Report For
June 2024

Page 20



Page 21


	Thousand Oaks Community Development District - July 8, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	June 10, 2024 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Minutes
	Discussion Regarding Maintenance Agreement Between HOA and CDD
	Financial Report




